January 29, 2007 Responses 

From the Landsat Data Continuity Mission (LDCM) Project to 

Post-RFP-Release Questions from Industry

Regarding the Operational Land Imager (OLI) Request for Proposal

NNG07177439R
1. Please clarify the intent of Observatory IRD sections 3.3.19.2.3 and 3.3.1.9.2.4 and the relationship to any pointing and jitter trade studies to be performed with respect to the spacecraft interface.
Response: The Observatory IRD will be revised in an amendment to clarify the intent of the PSD plot. Section L.17, Subfactor A, Item A.3 and corresponding portion of Section M of the Model Contract will be revised in an amendment. Please note that SOW paragraph 2.2 provides requirements for spacecraft trade study support.
2. Per FAR Clause 52.215-1, Alternate II,  May we submit an alternate proposal that may be advantageous to the government.

Response:  The RFP cites clause 52.215-1 without the Alternate II, therefore we have decided not to accept alternate proposals.

3. Is the Preliminary Reliability Program Plan (MAR 4.1.1 and CDRL SA-7) due with the proposal?

Response:  No. The MAR has been revised to be consistent with the CDRL and will be released in an amendment to the RFP.

4. Model Contract Clause I.10:  Please provide headings in the table for the columns containing "TBP".

Response: The table in Clause I.10 has been updated and will be released in an amendment to the RFP.

5. Model Contract Clause B.4: Should the offerors fill in the "TBDs"?

Response: No, the offerer should not fill in the TBDs. 

6. Model Contract Clause B.4:  Should the blank at the end of this clause be marked "TBD"?

Response: This blank has been marked TBD. This change will be reflected in an amendment to the RFP.

7. Are the references to SOW paragraphs 4.2.1.2.1 and 4.2.1.5 in Clause B.1 correct?

Response:  No. Corrections to the SOW references in Clause B.1 will be made in an amendment to the RFP.

8. Is there an Enclosure (1) to the solicitation?

Response: The original Enclosure 1 was deleted, thus there is currently no Enclosure 1.

9. Please clarify what "until the instrument ceases operation" means with respect to Incentive Fee.

Response: We presume you are referring to Clause B.5 which states, “(e)  The final calculation of positive or negative performance incentive amounts shall be done when performance ceases or when the maximum positive incentive is reached.”  Consistent with NFS 1852.216-88, ceasing of performance is defined by the unit of measurement, which for this contract is 60 one-month periods or until the Government determines the instrument has failed, as defined in B.5.

10. CDRL PM-7: May we assume that the 533M can be submitted 15 days after the end of each month and that the 533Q can be submitted 15 days after the close of the quarter?

Response:  533M and 533Q reporting requirements are provided in NPR 9501.2D. Compliance with NPR 9201.2D is required per contract clause G.8. 

11.  CDRL OO-8: Is a "final" submission of this data required?

Response:  Yes.  The CDRL will be revised in an amendment to the RFP.

12. CDRL OO-12: Is a "final" submission of this data required?

Response:  Yes.  The CDRL will be revised in an amendment to the RFP.

13. Will the CADRE spreadsheets be tailored to OLI instrument in the future?

Response:  Yes.  The spreadsheet posted with the RFP is a generalized tool that addresses all NASA activities.  After award, this spreadsheet will be tailored to eliminate elements that do not pertain to OLI.

14. Please clarify the requirements for certification of the Flight Operations team as referenced in SOW paragraph 5.4.1.

Response: The SOW will be revised in an amendment to the RFP to eliminate certification by the Contractor.

15. What is the Incentive Fee received if the six Positive Incentive Fee KPRs are exceeded to the maximum and one 100% Negative Incentive Fee KPR is missed to the maximum?

Response:  The OLI Requirements Document, the Observatory Interface Requirements Document, and Clause B.5 will be revised in an amendment to the RFP to ensure that all Negative Incentive Fee KPRs are required to be met in order to meet the criteria for Standard Performance (thus eliminating some logically undefined states that were inadvertently established under the current definition of Standard Performance).  As stated in Clause B.5, “When the OLI performance does not comply with standard performance level for a cumulative total of 24 hours during a calendar month, that month shall be considered an unsuccessful month of operation, and no positive performance incentive shall be earned for that month.”  Also as stated in Clause B.5, “The negative incentive to be paid by the Contractor will be evaluated based on the percent of degradation or by the failure of the instrument to meet the KPRs identified in the Key Performance Requirements document.”  In the scenario provided (six Positive Incentive Fee KPRs are exceeded and one 100% Negative Fee KPR is missed to the maximum), the contractor would not earn any Positive Fee and would have to pay 100% of the Negative Incentive Fee for the month under consideration.
